
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

May 6, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 842 7042 4922 

Password: 772202 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

A. Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Ed Tardoni 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action) Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Action) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business  Taylor Jones 

A. COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery 

1. Incident Command Team Update Kim White, Incident Commander 

B. Outstanding – Not Ready for Board Consideration (Placed on the agenda as a reminder of 
uncompleted business) 

1. Credentialing Criteria (presented following approval of new medical staff bylaws) 

VI. New Business  Taylor Jones  

A. Financial Hardship Policy (For Action) Marty Kelsey 

B. Plan for Providing Patient Care Services Kristy Nielson, Chief Nursing Officer 

And Scopes of Care (For Review) 

C. Charter  

1. Executive Oversight & Compensation (For Review) Richard Mathey 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Marty Kelsey  

1. Capital Expenditure Request (For Action) 

1/121



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

May 6, 2020 
2:00 p.m. 

Dial:  301-715-8592 
Meeting ID: 842 7042 4922 

Password: 772202 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

2. Bad Debt (For Action)  

April Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Ed Tardoni 

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Barbara Sowada 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Richard Mathey 

I. Joint Conference Committee Richard Mathey 

IX. Medical Staff Report Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, President 

A. Emergency Disaster Privileges (For Your Information) 

X. Good of the Order Taylor Jones 

XI. Executive Session  Taylor Jones 

XII. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

A. Approval of Privileges 

XIII. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

2/121



3/121



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

4/121



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

April 1, 2020 

 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session via 

Zoom on April 1, 2020, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order, asked for a roll call, and announced there was a quorum. 

The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard 

Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, 

Medical Staff President; Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel; and Mr. Jeff Smith, Sweetwater County 

Board of County Commissioners Liaison. 

 

Mr. Jones led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and 

vision statements. Ms. Richardson shared a mission moment about how amazing the community 

has been in their support. We have received encouragement as well as donations of supplies and 

food. The community has come together and we are so very appreciative. Ms. Richardson said 

“hats off” to staff, physicians, and everyone who has prepared and planned for response to the 

Covid-19 pandemic. She said it is an honor to be part of the kind and compassionate team we have 

here. The agenda was approved following the addition of approval of an emergency resolution. 

Mr. Jones noted charters were placed under new business and the Board may vote on any that were 

included in the committee reports last month.  

 

MESSAGE FROM PRESIDENT 

 

Mr. Jones said we are unable to celebrate National Doctors Day as planned and we will make up 

for that in the future. He said the Board knows there is a lot going on and this is the time we all 

need to stay calm, cool, collected, and make good decisions. Mr. Jones asked the Board to shorten 

or postpone as many meetings as possible. The Board does not want to hinder anything staff is 

trying to do. This is not intended to skip over important topics or just to shorten meetings. He said 

we need to still take care of business. Mr. Jones said we need to let the professionals do what they 

need to do. Mr. Jones reported Dr. Sowada obtained some information from the American Hospital 

Association and one suggestion was to shorten meetings. He said we do not steer with emotions 

and we need to make sure we make good decisions. Mr. Jones said we have a great Board and he 

said Ms. Richardson is keeping the Board informed. Mr. Jones thanked everyone for their hard 

work and dedication to the Hospital and the community. He said he has complete confidence we 

will all get through this together.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the March 4, 2020, regular meeting as presented was made 

by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

5/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 1, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

COVID-19 Preparation and Recovery – Incident Command Team 

 

Ms. Kim White, Incident Commander, provided an update of Covid-19 Incident Command Team 

activities. She said the Emergency Department is doing a great job of triaging patients. We are 

experiencing a shortage of personal protective equipment (PPE) and recently received 800 N95 

masks from the national stockpile. Ms. White said we are working to ensure staff have the PPE 

they need. She said staff and physicians have been very responsive to the constant changes. Ms. 

White said we are taking care of our patients and keeping staff safe. Ms. White reviewed Wyoming 

statistics and testing information. Ms. Richardson said Incident Command keeps our website 

updated and State information is included. Mr. Jones expressed appreciation to Ms. White for the 

good information and to everyone involved for their hard work. 

 

Charters 

 

Mr. Mathey noted all updated charters must show the revision date of April 1, 2020, following 

approval. He said the shaded block indicating “orientation resource handbook” should be removed. 

The Board agreed to include the same authority wording in all of the charters, “The committee has 

no expressed or implied power or authority.” 

 

The motion to approve the Building and Grounds Committee charter with the changes discussed 

was made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. 

 

The motion to approve the Compliance Committee charter with the changes discussed was made 

by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

The motion to approve the Finance and Audit Committee charter with the changes discussed was 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. 

 

The motion to approve the Governance Committee charter with the changes discussed was made 

by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. 

 

The motion to approve the Human Resources Committee charter with the changes discussed was 

made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve the Quality Committee charter with the changes discussed was made by 

Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

6/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 1, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee charter is not ready for 

review at the present time.  

 

Dr. Sowada thanked everyone involved in updating the charters. 

 

Emergency Resolution 

 

Mr. Phillips reported he has talked with the Wyoming Attorney General’s office and the County 

Attorney’s office about the resolution. He said Dr. Sowada has had communication with the 

American Hospital Association. Mr. Phillips said many other entities are doing something like this 

and hopefully, we won’t have the need to use these emergency powers, but we should have them 

in place. Mr. Phillips said the Board can ratify after action but he feels it’s a good idea to have this 

in place. He suggested any action taken be ratified at a special meeting or the next regular meeting. 

Mr. Jones said approving this resolution shows the Board’s support of Ms. Richardson and staff 

doing the right things. He said everyone agrees Ms. Richardson will only take actions in the best 

interest of the Hospital. Following this process will help keep the Board informed. The motion to 

approve the emergency resolution and authorize the Board President to sign the resolution was 

made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the information included in her report in the meeting packet. She said 

we have a very experienced and highly trained team on the Incident Command Team. We are 

doing our best to keep our community, staff, and patients safe. Ms. Richardson said she appreciates 

everyone having these remote meetings. The strategic plan update retreat will be rescheduled. The 

person-centered care workshops are on-hold until at least the end of April. Ms. Richardson said 

she would forward to the Board a link on person-centered care in a pandemic for review. She 

recognized Ms. Megan Jacobsen and Ms. Emily James in OB for the amazing job they are doing 

in leading improvement in our Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and 

Systems (HCAHPS) scores. Ms. Richardson also recognized Ms. Melissa Anderson and 

Emergency Department staff and physicians for their huge leaps in their scores. She expressed 

appreciation for all departments for their efforts and to the Board for supporting holding on some 

activities so we may focus on Covid-19. Ms. Richardson reported the walk-in clinic efforts are 

amazing and recognized Ms. Leslie Taylor and the staff. Ms. Richardson said the Standard and 

Poor’s call will take place in April. They have issued a negative outlook for not-for-profit hospitals 

as Covid-19 unfolds. Ms. Richardson said there have been no 6 Penny updates. We will be ready 

when The Joint Commission starts visiting sites again. Budget meetings begin the week of April 

13. The Wyoming Hospital Association Trustee and CEO education event April 30 has been 

canceled. The University of Utah Symposium at the end of March was canceled. We canceled our 

participation in The Governance Institute leadership conference in April. Ms. Richardson said we 

are doing what we can to “slow the spread.” The Health Fair was held March 7 and Ms. Richardson 

recognized Ms. Janae Gale and everyone involved for offering a wonderful event. Ms. Richardson 

expressed appreciation to the physicians and said we will reschedule the Doctors Day celebration. 

She thanked the Board for passing the emergency resolution. She thanked the Board, staff, leaders, 

physicians, commissioners, and the community. Ms. Richardson said we literally are in this 

together. 

7/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 1, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada said all information is in the packet and there is nothing new to report. 

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said there were no comments. 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $799,483.94 as presented was 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried.   

 

Mr. Kelsey said we did not get March numbers yet but we know it will be financially challenging 

moving forward. He said we need to do all we can to cut costs for things that are non-essential. He 

said staff has been working hard on self-pay accounts and we are working on a 5-step plan. We 

are not ready to roll it out yet. There will be a financial hardship policy for Board approval next 

month. Mr. Kelsey said the staff is doing a great job coming up with ideas and ways to address 

issues and opportunities. He said he is confident we will move forward in a positive way.  

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the new cooling tower is up at the central plant. 

 

Foundation Board 

 

Mr. Jones announced Ms. Tiffany Marshall had her baby and expressed congratulations. He said 

the Foundation is setting up an account for Covid-19 monetary donations. He said Ms. Deb Sutton 

is leading the charge to set that up for people to donate to the Hospital. Mr. Jones said it is greatly 

appreciated and we know it will be well-spent and greatly appreciated by staff. Ms. Richardson 

said Ms. Marshall has been helping to identify any grants that can help with obtaining supplies. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said there were no comments. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the minutes are in the packet for review. She said there are some things we may 

want to address in our bylaws regarding the American Hospital Association guidelines and 

recommendations.  

 

  

8/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 1, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Board will review the Committee work in executive session.  

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Mr. Mathey said the Committee has not met. The Medical Executive Committee (MEC) was going 

to meet March 24. Dr. Lauridsen said MEC had other pressing matters on that date and the meeting 

will be rescheduled. 

 

The Board took a 10-minute break. The meeting reconvened at 3:40 PM. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Lauridsen said the doctors and providers have been very understanding and supportive. He 

expressed gratitude to Incident Command and Administration. We are striving to provide 

expanded hours and options to meet patient needs. The bylaws will be placed on-hold for awhile. 

Dr. Knight resigned and will be missed. The motion to approve the trauma resolution as presented 

and authorization for the Board President to sign was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. 

Motion carried.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Smith said the City of Rock Springs has decided to withdraw their 6 Penny request at this 

time. He said there will be continued discussions around timing and needs. Mr. Smith said he will 

keep Ms. Richardson updated.  

 

Mr. Mathey asked which way the wind is blowing regarding financials. He said, as a Board 

member, he doesn’t have much of a feel about what is happening day-to-day. Ms. Richardson said 

she was planning to discuss some issues during executive session and thanked Mr. Mathey for the 

opportunity to share some information at this time. She reviewed the timeline and some general 

information. She reported we have seen a decrease of about 25% in volume since March 1. If this 

continues, we could expect about a loss of about $1.5M for April. Days of cash on hand and debt 

service ratio are two items we are watching and must be in compliance with for our bond 

covenants. We are looking at decisions we will have to make moving forward. Ms. Richardson 

said we are waiting to see what the future holds. She said we will probably see similar outcomes 

for May and June if this continues. We have reached out on bond covenant questions but all we 

are seeing indicates we must meet our bond covenants. Ms. Richardson said we want to make good 

decisions. Mr. Mathey thanked Ms. Richardson. Mr. Kelsey said he thinks Finance and Audit 

might be more active than other committees moving forward for a little while. He foresees a 

situation where some tough decisions will need to come down. He said we will have to strategize 

what to do moving forward.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into Executive Session was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion 

carried.  

9/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 1, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:30 PM, the motion to come out of executive session and into open session was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 
 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to grant privileges to healthcare professionals as discussed in executive session was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from March 10, 2020  

1. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

• Dr. Arnold Willis, Urology 

 

2. Initial Appointment to AHP Staff (1 year) 

• Brian Barton, PA-C, Physician Assistant/Family Medicine  

 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

• Dr. Samer Kattan, OB/GYN 

 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

• Dr. Giavonni Lewis, Tele Burn (U of U) 

• Dr. Larry Kraiss, Vascular Surgery (U of U) 

• Dr. Anwar Tandar, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

• Dr. Omar Wever-Pinzon, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

• Dr. Christopher Hull, Dermatology (U of U) 

• Dr. Stephanie Runyan, Tele Radiology (VRad) 

• Dr. Krishnan Kartha, Tele Radiology (VRad) 

• Dr. William Wong, Tele Radiology (VRad) 

• Dr. Thomas Boden, Tele Radiology (VRad) 

• Dr. Kendall Jones, Tele Radiology (VRad) 

 

5. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

• Jennie Vagher, CGC, Genetic Counseling (Huntsman) 

 

The motion to approve the executive oversight and compensation minutes and table the proposal 

going forward included in those minutes was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion 

carried.  

 

The motion to deny a notice of claim was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion 

carried. 

 

  

10/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 1, 2020 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

11/121



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

April 23, 2020 

 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in special session via 

Zoom on April 23, 2020, at 5:00 PM with Mr. Taylor Jones, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting to order, asked for a roll call, and announced there was a quorum. 

The following Trustees were present online: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. Excused: Mr. Richard Mathey. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, 

Medical Staff President; and Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Mr. Jones led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

INSURANCE DISCUSSION 

 

Ms. Richardson said we wanted to put our property and liability insurance out to bid and at the 

beginning of the year  we asked Mr. James Graham of Applied Risk Solutions to help us with this 

process. She said he has done an excellent job of researching information. Ms. Richardson said we 

received an excellent proposal and we feel ready to approve it. Mr. Kelsey said he has gone through 

all of the numbers and they appear accurate to him. There are still a couple of outstanding 

coverages we need to talk about. One involves the helipad and we are working with the University 

of Utah on this. The other is a site pollution liability item. He said he feels comfortable approving 

with authorization for senior management to do what they need to do to cover the missing items. 

Mr. Graham said he believes broker services are performance based. A service agreement helps 

memorialize and creates a better dynamic and continues the learning process. Mr. Phillips said 

regarding medical malpractice we do not want to be under-insured and we do not want to be over-

insured. He said as a hospital we cannot indemnify. Mr. Graham said he can update the wording. 

The motion to approve MHSC accept the proposal for insurance coverages as presented on the 

document dated April 22, 2020 by Applied Risk Solutions for $507,878 with the understanding if 

it’s determined that different insurance for the helipad and site pollution is needed, management 

can make the decision as recommended by Mr. Graham was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. 

Tardoni. Motion carried. Mr. Jones expressed appreciation to everyone involved in this process 

and thanked Mr. Graham for his time. Mr. Kelsey said Mr. Graham has been a rock star through 

all of this and all of us have learned a lot. Mr. Kelsey said he is grateful Mr. Graham is on our 

team. Mr. Graham said it has been a pleasure working with the Hospital.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into Executive Session was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion 

carried.  

  

12/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 23, 2020 Board of Trustees Special Meeting 

Page 2 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 6:12 PM, the motion to come out of executive session and into open session was made by Dr. 

Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The motion to deny a notice of claim was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion 

carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned.   

 

 

       

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 
 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

13/121



14/121



15/121



16/121



17/121



18/121



19/121



20/121



21/121



22/121



23/121



24/121



25/121



26/121



27/121



28/121



29/121



30/121



31/121



32/121



33/121



34/121



35/121



36/121



37/121



38/121



39/121



40/121



41/121



42/121



43/121



44/121



45/121



46/121



47/121



48/121



49/121



50/121



51/121



52/121



53/121



54/121



55/121



56/121



57/121



58/121



59/121



Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Charter 
 
 Page 1 

 

Board Charter: The Executive Oversight and Compensation 
Committee  

                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                          

Category: Board Committee & Committee Charters 
Title: Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: 2017; June 3, 2020 
 
            
   
  

Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the committee is to assist the Board of Trustees (Board) in discharging 
its fiduciary and oversight duties in respect to conducting oversight, evaluation, and 
compensation review, in accordance with Board’s Oversight and Compensation Policy, 
for the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and in respect to establishing the compensation 
range of other Chief Officers. 
 

Authority: 
 
The Committee has no express or implied power or authority. 
 

 
Responsibilities: 
 
In fulfilling its charge, the Committee is responsible for the following activities and 
functions: 

• Provides direction and oversight for the CEO evaluation process. 

• In conjunction with the full Board, meets monthly with the CEO to review 
progress toward meeting performance expectations and responses to 
unanticipated situations.  

o The secretary of the Committee shall document and maintain records of 
these proceeding. 

o Annually, the records will be summarized for Board approval, which then 
becomes the annual CEO evaluation. 
 

60/121



Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Charter 
 
 Page 2 

 

• Recommends policies and processes to the Board for the regular and orderly 
review of the performance, compensation, and development of the CEO. The 
process shall include provisions for input from the full Board. 

• Develops, for Board approval, the job description for the CEO, including 
responsibilities, as well as education and experience recommendations. 

• Monitors the contractual relations between the hospital and the CEO so that the 
charitable, tax-exempt mission of the hospital is not jeopardized and the 
contractual provisions are in compliance with all Federal and State regulations. 

• Periodically reviews CEO compensation for reasonableness and competitiveness 
and, if appropriate, recommends to the Board, changes in salary, benefits, and 
other forms of compensation for the hospital’s chief officers. 

• Directs the CEO to prepare and annually update a CEO and other chief officers 
succession and management development plan, which shall be reviewed with 
the Committee and shall be reported to and approved by the Board. 
 

Composition 
 
The Committee shall consist of two (2) members of the Board, one of whom is the 
President of the Board, who shall serve as chair. The other shall be the secretary of this 
committee. The Chief Executive Officer attends committee meetings by invitation. 
 

Meeting Schedule 
 
The Committee shall meet quarterly, or as needed. 
 

Reports  
 
The Committee will receive and review the following reports. 

• Data from independent sources on executive compensation for comparable 
positions in comparable organization, when appropriate. 

• Management succession plan. 

• The annual summary of the monthly performance review proceedings with the 
CEO, which summary shall be presented to the Board for approval before 
discussing the report with the CEO. 

61/121



HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD 

 APRIL 2020  

 Ed Tardoni 

 

The Human Resources Committee did not meet in April but will hold a Zoom meeting in May. 

The HR Director instructed staff to prepare the usual report for inclusion in the May Board packet. 

 

The Committee has the Revised Termination and Appeal Policy under discussion. The Agenda for the 

May meeting has been restricted to finishing that discussion and reaching a decision that will allow it to 

be included in the June Board Packet 

The Revised Termination and Appeal Policy is the Policy that was drafted by the team of Marty Kelsey, 

Irene Richardson and Jim Phillips.  There is consensus that it is a well written policy and a significant 

improvement to the existing documents.  There are only a few items to resolve.  Those are related to 

some wording improvements that have been proposed by Marty Kelsey and arrival at a consensus on 

the length of the promotion probationary period.  There are two option of that to be decided upon. 

Tami Love has provided a list and information on the other existing policies that would be impacted by 

adoption of the Revised Termination and Appeal Policy.  The Committee needs to decide on a plan of 

action for that effort. 

 

62/121



63/121



64/121



65/121



66/121



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

April 29, 2020 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee – Chair 

Mr. Richard Mathey, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Voting Members Absent:   

 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services  

Mr. Rich Tyler, Director of Information Technology 

Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials 

Dr. Kristy Nielson, CNO 

Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen 

 

Non-Voting Members Absent : Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Ms. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

 

Guests:    Mr. Taylor Jones, Trustee 

      

      

      

     Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order via teleconference.  
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of March 25, 2020 as presented was made by Mr. 

Mathey; second by Ms. Richardson.  Motion carried.  
 

 

Capital Requests 
 

Capital request FY20-55 was included in the packet for a Domestic Hot Water Heat Exchanger.  

Mr. Kelsey noted that this item was not budgeted for, but the other considerations page  

explained why this is a necessary purchase at this time.  Hot water is an essential service.  The 

motion to approve the request to forward to the full Board was made by Mr. Mathey; second by 

Ms. Richardson.  Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Kelsey referred to the Capital Summary included in the packet that lists all capital that has 

been approved this year.  He asked about the Lucas Chest Compression System that was added 

to the list this month for $48,541.  He was wondering why it was not approved at finance.  Ms. 

Love explained that the Helmsley Foundation is paying for these machines.  They approached 

the hospital about purchasing them for us and requested a PO right away to get the process 

started.  Ms. Love explained that we would buy the machines and then the MHSC Foundation 

would reimburse the hospital and then the Foundation would receive reimbursement from the 

67/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 29, 2020 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

Helmsley Foundation.  Mr. Kelsey said that because the hospital is purchasing the equipment, 

they need to be approved by the Finance and Audit Committee.  Ms. Love said she will add the 

capital request for the machines to the next meeting packet.  Mr. Kelsey also asked if we had a 

donation policy in place.  Ms. Love and Ms. Richardson said that they did not think that such a 

policy exists and there was discussion if it was needed. 

 

Financial Report 
 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Love to summarize key points to the March financial statements.  Ms. 

Love reported that we saw a decrease in volumes over the last 2 weeks of March due to the 

Covid pandemic.  The revenue for March was down by 10%.  Our expenses increased in March 

due to the preparation for the Covid pandemic.  More supplies and labor were needed as we 

stood up our Incident Command center.  She also explained that we can submit Covid overtime 

and Covid expenses to FEMA for reimbursement.  Collections for March were $7.8 million and 

our days of cash on hand increased to 139. 

 

She said our revenues are down for April.  We have also seen a decrease in salary and wage of 

$300,000 from March.  This is due to employees using PTO and utilizing low census in some 

departments.  She said we are seeing a 25-30% decrease in our revenue due to this pandemic.   

 

Ms. Richardson said that we received word this week that elective surgeries are allowed.  The 

issue is the PPE.  We cannot use FEMA supplies for elective surgeries and it is difficult to get 

supplies from other vendors.  She also said that we are testing all inpatients and all surgery 

patients for Covid.  Ms. Bennett said we are placed behind some of the bigger hospitals in 

receiving supplies.  She does not know what we will receive until it lands on the dock. Mr. Jones 

suggested she speak with ALSCO.  He knows they have masks, he is just not sure what kind.   

 

 

Old Business 

 

Mr. Cheese provided an update on peritoneal dialysis payments.  He said that we have finally 

received the majority of the payments.  We only have $50,000 out of the total $360,000 

remaining to collect.  

 

Mr. Cheese presented the Financial Hardship Policy.  He explained that there are 3 different 

programs.  The first program is the Self-Pay Rate.  This program offers a 50% discount to 

uninsured patients if they meet the criteria.  The second program is the Medical Assistance 

Program.  This program is designed to assist patients when their gross income falls below 300% 

of the federal poverty level.  The third program is Payment Arrangements.  This is very similar 

to the payment arrangement plan that has always been in place, it just adds more levels.  The top 

level now requires a minimum payment of $500 for balances over $10,000.  Mr. Cheese said that 

these plans are in place to help with the growing self-pay portion of accounts receivable.   

 

Mr. Mathey said that this was much improved and easier to understand.  Mr. Kelsey said the 

policy was ready for approval and asked for a motion.  The motion to approve the request to 

forward to the full Board was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Ms. Love.  Motion carried. 

68/121



 

 

Minutes of the April 29, 2020 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if the self-pay plans discussed a couple of months ago need to be approved by 

the finance committee.  Ms. Love did not think that they did.  Mr. Kelsey asked for an update on 

the plans.  Ms. Love explained that some of them have been put on hold due to Covid.  We have 

hired another patient navigator, but she is not working in that position yet.  Some of the other 

plans are included in the Financial Hardship Policy that was just presented.  Mr. Cheese said that 

the Recondo upgrade for upfront collections will be started in 2-3 weeks.  Mr. Cheese said he 

would keep the committee up-to-date with the success of the plans.      

 

Financial Forum Discussion 

 

Ms. Love said that the committee needs to decide on a date to hold a budget workshop meeting.  

She explained that the Finance Committee will need to approve the budget at the May meeting to 

be sent to the full Board for approval at their June meeting.  She suggested sometime mid-May 

for the meeting.  It was decided to hold the meeting May 19, 2020 at 1pm.  Mr. Kelsey said that 

this is going to be a challenging budget year.  It might be a year where the budget would need to 

be modified mid-year.   

 

Ms. Richardson asked if the finance sub-committee still needed to meet on Friday.  She said they 

did not have any new information to report.  Mr. Kelsey said he was good with cancelling this 

Friday and meeting the following Friday.   

 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:00 PM. 

 
 

Submitted by Jan Layne 

69/121



Finance & Audit Special Meeting Minutes 

Friday, April 17, 2020 

Present via Zoom:  Members - Marty Kelsey, Irene Richardson, Tami Love and Jan Layne 

      Guests:  Suzan Campbell and James Graham – Applied Risk Solutions 

Absent:  Richard Mathey 

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

James Graham from Applied Risk Solutions presented the new proposed insurance policy.  Mr. Graham 

said they have been working hard with UMIA and USI to present a plan everyone involved would be 

happy with.  Mr. Graham presented a detailed summary of the proposed plan including potential 

savings.   

Mr. Kelsey said Mr. Graham’s presentation was very helpful.  Ms. Richardson said it was very 

educational and thanked Mr. Graham.  Mr. Kelsey said that we needed to act on the insurance proposal 

right away and asked that a Special Board Meeting be scheduled.  Ms. Richardson said that she would 

contact Mr. Taylor Jones to get that scheduled.  Mr. Kelsey asked Mr. Graham if he would provide a one-

page written summary for the Board Meeting.  He would like it to include a comparison of what our 

current insurance policy provides compared to the proposed policy.   

Ms. Richardson made a motion to forward the insurance proposal for selection of coverages to the 

Board; second by Ms. Love.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 9:30 am. 

70/121



71/121



72/121



73/121



74/121



75/121



76/121



77/121



78/121



79/121



80/121



81/121



82/121



83/121



84/121



85/121



86/121



87/121



88/121



89/121



90/121



91/121



92/121



93/121



94/121



95/121



96/121



97/121



98/121



99/121



100/121



101/121



102/121



103/121



104/121



105/121



106/121



107/121



108/121



109/121



110/121



111/121



112/121



113/121



114/121



115/121



116/121



117/121



BUILDING AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT TO THE BOARD 

 APRIL 2020  

 Ed Tardoni 

 

The B&G Committee held a Zoom meeting in April.  The agenda was restricted to a project update. 

Maintenance Metrics 

Mr. Horan did report on a significant step improvement in Maintenance Metrics.  He said it was due to 

the fact that Facilities could move directly from one repair to initiating work on the next.  This without 

the usual restriction of working and scheduling around patient flow. 

PROJECT REVIEW 

B&G STORAGE LEANTO. 

There are a few items left on this project.  A concrete apron has yet to be poured.  That work has been 

delayed to avoid impacting the Central Plant Contractor workflow.  It was always planned for Facilities to 

do the electrical.  They have the necessary certified electricians and license and permits to do so.  That 

work has been delayed in favor of taking the opportunity to efficiently execute in hospital maintenance 

work.  The unit is roofed, doors installed, and Facilities Group is using it. 

CENTRAL PLANT 

At the time of the meeting this project was under rapid change.  It will be necessary to have Mr. Horan 

or Tami Love update the Board at the May meeting. 

Project status at the time of the meeting is as follows: 

• The new cooling tower was being filled. 

• The cutover to the new boiler deareoater was scheduled for later in the day. 

• The start up of the first new chiller was being planned. 

• The only outstanding items were changes to the doors on the end of the building; but that was 

being left until after the new operations equipment was up and proven reliable. 

• No change orders had been requested and none were anticipated. 

Challenges at the time of the meeting were as follows: 

• The contractor was two weeks behind schedule due to some manpower restrictions but had 

begun working Saturdays and Sundays to catch up. 

• The critical issue was getting the first new chiller running and proven reliable before outside 

temperatures reached 70 degrees.  This was critical as it would be to great a risk to take the old 

chiller equipment out of service, at 70 degree outside temperature, without having proven the 

new chiller reliable. 

 

 

118/121



Gerry Johnston 

Mr. Horan commended Gerry Johnston for his work on the Central Plant Project.  He has been the 

contact and project manger on this job.  He noted his tracking of the project and actions taken with the 

contractor.  Mr. Horan’s commendation was echoed by Committee Members.  Mr. Johnston has 

performed in a very admirable way and had demonstrated exceptional competence. 

 

DOMESTIC HOT WATER HEAT EXCHANGER. 

The tube bundle in one of the exchangers used in this service has been a maintenance problem.  It has 

experienced repeated broken tubes to the point that it is no longer reliable and must be replaced. 

Mr. Horan reviewed the proposed solution.  The solution involves purchase of a new ($27,000) unit that 

would be located on the floor below the existing equipment.  This would allow the tube bundle to be 

easily removed.  That is in contrast to the exchanger it would replace that does not allow extraction of 

the bundle due to space limitations. 

Mr. Horan said a document had been prepared for the Finance and Audit committee proposing the 

purchase.  Dr. Sowada asked that the F&A Committee be made aware of B&G Committee agreement 

with the project and that it be included in the meeting minutes.  I concurred with that action. 

It should be understood that a B&G Committee recommendation to the F&A Committee is never an 

attempt to pressure F&A.  It is only a formal statement that B&G has examined the mechanical, 

operational and compliance aspects of the project and attended possible solutions and finds the 

direction chosen appropriate from those perspectives.  Purchasing recommendations to the Board are 

made only by action of the F&A Committee. 

 

119/121



120/121



 

 
 
 
 

Disaster Privilege Request Form 

 
Applicant name, title (please print):           

 

I certify that I am licensed/certified as a          
       (Specialty) 
 

In the state of:     License #:         

 

Hospital Affiliations: 

 

I currently have privileges to practice at the following hospital(s): 

 

Hospital Name:        Phone Number:    

 

Hospital Name:        Phone Number:    

 

Professional Liability Insurance: 

□ I have professional liability insurance coverage through the following company: 

               

□ I do not have professional liability insurance coverage.  I am volunteering under W.S. 1-1-120. Persons 

rendering emergency assistance exempt from civil liability. (a) Any person licensed as a physician and 

surgeon under the laws of the state of Wyoming, or any other person, who in good faith renders emergency care 

or assistance without compensation at the place of an emergency or accident, is not liable for any civil damages 

for acts or omissions in good faith. 
 

Attestation: 
 

I hereby volunteer my medical services to Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) of Rock Springs, 

Wyoming.  During this emergency/disaster, I agree to practice as directed and under the supervision of a 

medical staff member of MHSC. 
 

I also acknowledge that my privileges at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County shall immediately 

terminate once the emergency/disaster has ended, as notified by MHSC. 

 

               
Printed Name of Practitioner  Signature of Practitioner       Date 
 

Disaster privileges are granted based upon recommendation by any of the following: 

 Chief of Staff     ●  Vice Chief of Staff 

 Any Medical Staff Department Chair  ●   CEO or His/Her Designee 

The information provided by the practitioner has been reviewed, and he/she is granted disaster privileges. 

 

               
Signature of Grantor   Title         Date 

 
N 03/2020 

121/121


	Agenda - May 6 2020 Mtg[1753]
	Pledge of Ellegiance 

	Our Mission and Vision 

	Minutes 

	Minutes for April 23 2020
	Financial Hardship Policy 

	Plan for Providing Patient Care Services 

	Executive Oversight &amp; Compensation 

	Human Resources Committee 

	Capital Expenditure Request 

	April Committee Meeting Information 
	Special Finance Meeting Minutes - April 17, 2020[1871]
	April 2020 Finance Meeting Information
	Building &amp; Grounds Committee 

	B&amp;G April 21 2020
	Emergency Disaster Privileges 


